
Summons to Meeting

Tuesday 17 July 2018

Council
Wednesday 25 July 2018, 7.00 pm

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor John Crouch (Chair) Councillor Neil Schofield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Peter Bales
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Nicky Cockburn
Councillor John Colhoun Councillor John Cook
Councillor Joseph Cowell Councillor Len Davies
Councillor Adrian Davis-Johnston Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Duncan Fairbairn Councillor Janet Farebrother
Councillor Bill Finlay Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
Councillor Mark Fryer Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Michael Heaslip Councillor Alan Hedworth
Councillor Vaughan Hodgson Councillor Joe Holliday
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Frank Johnston Councillor Angela Kendall
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Jim Lister
Councillor Tony Lywood Councillor Patricia Macdonald
Councillor Louise Maguire Councillor Anthony Markley
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jacqueline Mounsey Councillor Ron Munby
Councillor Eric Nicholson Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor Alan Pitcher
Councillor Martin Pugmire Councillor Denis Robertson
Councillor Joe Sandwith Councillor Alan Smith
Councillor Christine Smith Councillor Stephen Stoddart
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Philip Tibble
Councillor Lee Williamson Councillor David Wilson
Councillor Janice Wood Councillor Martin Wood

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502.

Page 1



Agenda
1. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the Council meeting held on 2 May 
2018.

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
To consider whether there are any items on the agenda for which the press and 
public should be excluded.

5. Questions and Petitions  
To answer questions under Procedural Rule No. 4.16 from members of the 
public and from Councillors under Procedural Rule No. 4.17.2 and to receive 
Petitions under Access to Information Rules.

6. Notices of Motion  
Councillor A Smith submitted the following notice of motion:

‘This Council wishes to express its deep concern regarding the retraction of rail 
services on the Windermere line and the affect this has caused upon all Allerdale 
communities.

Due to the flimsy travel networks prevailing throughout Cumbria, and our 
reliance on tourism to assist the economy, this failure has shown the need for 
Government assistance to upgrade our much needed rail network. As such, this 
Council calls upon all of the Cumbrian MPs to join us in support of this, and any 
other motion, that appertains to the loss of rail services at Oxenholme which 
would result in significant impact on Cumbria as a whole’.

7. Councillor Speeches  
To hear speeches (not exceeding 5 minutes each), for up to a specified period of 
15 minutes, from individual members on a local issue in the Member’s Ward, of 
which 24 hours’ notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

8. Announcements from the Mayor, Leader or Head of Paid Service  (Pages 
13 - 16)

9. Portfolio Holder Reports  (Pages 17 - 32)

10. Executive Minutes  (Pages 33 - 58)
To note the minutes of the meetings of the Executive held on 21 February, 21 
March, 18 April, 16 May and 13 June 2018.

11. Annual Summary from Overview and Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 59 - 70)

Page 2



12. Community Governance Review Petition  (Pages 71 - 82)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Wednesday 19 September 2018, 7.00 pm
Allerdale House, Workington

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



At a meeting of the Council held in Wallace Suite - Hundith Hill Hotel, Cockermouth on 
Wednesday 2 May 2018 at 6.30 pm

Members

Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Chair) Councillor John Crouch (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor Peter Bales Councillor Barbara Cannon
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor John Colhoun
Councillor Joseph Cowell Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Janet Farebrother Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Michael Heaslip Councillor Vaughan Hodgson
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor William Jefferson
Councillor Frank Johnston Councillor Angela Kendall
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Jim Lister
Councillor Patricia Macdonald Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes
Councillor Billy Miskelly Councillor Ron Munby
Councillor Eric Nicholson Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor Alan Pitcher
Councillor Martin Pugmire Councillor Joe Sandwith
Councillor Neil Schofield Councillor Alan Smith
Councillor Christine Smith Councillor Stephen Stoddart
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Philip Tibble
Councillor Lee Williamson Councillor Janice Wood
Councillor Martin Wood

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor John Cook, Councillor Len 
Davies, Councillor Adrian Davis-Johnston, Councillor Duncan Fairbairn, Councillor Mark 
Fryer, Councillor Alan Hedworth, Councillor Mark Jenkinson, Councillor Tony Lywood, 
Councillor Louise Maguire, Councillor Anthony Markley, Councillor Jacqueline 
Mounsey, Councillor Denis Robertson and Councillor David Wilson

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, I Frost, A Gilbert, N Hardy, C Holmes, K Kerrigan, J Lord, 
C Nicholson, J Owen, G Roach, A Seekings, E Thompson, R Wilkinson, G Wilson and 
P Wood

1. Mayor's Welcome 

The Mayor welcomed those present.

2. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

3. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

There were no items on the agenda for which the press and public should be 
excluded. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



4. Mayor's Announcements 

The Mayor reviewed her year of office and spoke of her most memorable 
moments.

The Mayor thanked those who had helped her over the past year, especially the 
Deputy Mayor of Allerdale for his support, the Mayor’s Secretary and 
Democratic Services and many other Allerdale Officers.

During her year a total of £4,461.55 had been raised for her chosen charity 
Allerdale Disability Association.

5. Election of Mayor for the Forthcoming Year 

Councillor M Bainbridge invited nominations for the election of Mayor of 
Allerdale for the forthcoming year.

Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor John Crouch to be elected Mayor of 
the Borough for 2018/19. This was seconded by Councillor B Cannon.

Councillor A Smith said that Councillor Crouch would make an excellent Mayor, 
he had served the people of Wigton for many years and was well liked by 
everyone.

A vote was taken in favour of Councillor Crouch, 43 in favour, 0 against and 0 
abstentions.  The motion to elect Councillor John Crouch as Mayor of the 
Allerdale Borough was carried. 

Resolved – That Councillor John Crouch be elected Mayor of the Borough for 
the ensuing year 2018/19. 

Councillor John Crouch took the Declaration of Acceptance of Office and 
assumed the Chair.

6. Presentation to the Outgoing Mayor 

Councillor John Crouch presented the outgoing Mayor, Councillor Mary 
Bainbridge, with a badge of office.

7. Election of Deputy Mayor for the Forthcoming Year 

Nominations were invited for the appointment of Deputy Mayor of Allerdale for 
the forthcoming year. 

Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor Neil Schofield to be elected Deputy 
Mayor for the ensuing year 2018/19.  This was seconded by Councillor B 
Cannon.

A vote was taken, 43 in favour of Councillor Schofield, 0 against and 0 
abstentions.  The motion to elect Councillor Neil Schofield as Deputy Mayor 
was carried.

Page 6



Resolved – That Councillor Neil Schofield be elected as Deputy Mayor of the 
Borough for the forthcoming year 2018/19.

Councillor Schofield thereupon took the Declaration of Acceptance of Office and 
took his chair on stage.

8. Speech of Incoming Mayor 

Councillor Crouch, newly elected Mayor of the Borough, thanked Councillors for 
his election and the opportunity to represent the Council, fellow councillors, 
officers and the public. He said it was an honour to be Mayor once again after 
16 years and that he looked forward to the year ahead.
Councillor Crouch paid tribute to the hard work Councillor Bainbridge had 
carried out over the past 12 months and said her commitment to the local 
communities was an inspiration.

Councillor Crouch announced that his chosen charities for the forthcoming year 
were Amy’s Care, a family run community interest community based in Ireby 
and Allerdale COSC. He said both charities were very close to his heart and 
very important to local communities and he would work very hard to support 
them.

9. The Leader's Report 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Councillors received the report of 
the Leader of the Council giving details of his chosen Executive and their 
Authority to Act. Members also received the Scheme of Delegation.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations within the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Resolved

That –

1. The Executive membership and responsibilities be noted
2. The Scheme of Delegation be agreed.

10. Minutes 

The minutes of the Council meeting held on 7 March 2018 were signed as a 
correct record.

11. Committee Memberships 2018/19 

Councillors considered nominations to Committees, Panels and Tribunals for 
2018/19.  Their Terms of Reference were also considered.  

Page 7



Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations in the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Resolved

That –

1. The committee, tribunal and panel memberships for 2018/19 as set 
out in Appendix A of the report be agreed

2. The Terms of Reference for committees, tribunals and panels, as 
detailed in Appendix B of the report, be agreed.

Committee, Tribunal and Panel Memberships 2018/19

Audit Committee (7)

Chair: M Bainbridge Vice Chair: N Schofield

Labour (4) Conservative (2) Independent (1)
M Bainbridge T Annison J Cook
J Colhoun D Fairbairn
B Miskelly
N Schofield

Chief Officer’s Employment Panel (5)

Chair: A Smith Vice Chair: M Fryer

Labour (3) Conservative (1) Independent (1)
M Fryer A Markley J Cook
A Smith
Portfolio Holder

Development Panel (12)

Chair: P Bales Vice Chair: B Miskelly

Labour (6) Conservative (4) Independent (1) None (1)
C Armstrong T Annison N Cockburn D Wilson
P Bales M Grainger
J Farebrother M Jenkinson
B Miskelly R Munby
J Osborn
B Pegram
Substitutes Substitutes Substitutes Substitutes
F Johnston J Cowell M Fitzgerald
P Tibble A Hedworth

J Lister
A Markley

Page 8



Discretionary Housing Payments Tribunal (3)

Chair: C Armstrong Vice Chair: A Markley

Labour (1) Conservative (1) None (1)
C Armstrong A Markley D Robertson

Licensing Committee (15)

Chair: A Kendall Vice Chair: C Smith

Labour (8) Conservative (4) Independent (2) None (1)
M Bainbridge T Annison L Davies S Stoddart
A Kendall M Grainger H Harrington
P Kendall J Mounsey
B Miskelly R Munby
B Pegram
C Smith
J Wood
M Wood

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12)

Chair: A Pitcher Co-Chair: J Farebrother

Labour (6) Conservative (3) Independent (2) None (1)
J Farebrother J Cowell B Finlay J Holliday
F Johnston M Grainger H Harrington
B Miskelly A Pitcher
J Osborn
B Pegram
M Wood

Personnel Tribunal (5)

Chair: A Kendall Vice Chair: M Wood

Labour (2) Conservative (1) Independent (1) None (1)
A Kendall A Markley J Cook W Jefferson
M Wood
Substitutes Substitutes Substitutes Substitutes
C Armstrong

Standards Committee (7)

Chair: J Wood Vice Chair: C Smith

Labour 
(3)

Conservative 
(2)

Independent 
(1)

UKIP (1) Non-
Council 
Members 
(2)

Parish 
Reps.

Page 9



A Kendall T Annison M Fitzgerald J 
Sandwith

P Burns

C Smith D Fairbairn
J Wood

Non-politically Proportionate

Member Development Working Group (9)

Chair: J Ellis Vice Chair: K Hansen

Labour (5) Conservative (2) Independent (1) None (1)
C Armstrong M Grainger M Fitzgerald D Wilson
J Ellis A Markley
J Farebrother
K Hansen
B Miskelly

12. Appointment of Representatives to serve on Outside Bodies and Joint 
Committees 2018/19 

Members considered the appointment of representatives on outside bodies and 
Joint Committees for the forthcoming year which were a function of Council. 

Councillor A Smith moved that the nominations set out in the report be agreed. 
Councillor B Cannon seconded.

A vote was taken – 40 voted in favour of Councillor A Smith’s motion, 0 against 
and 3 abstentions. The motion was carried.

Resolved

That the appointment of representatives on outside bodies and Joint 
Committees for the forthcoming year be as follows:

Name of 
Outside Body

Number of 
representatives

Length of 
appointment

Nominated 
representatives

Cumbria County 
Council Pensions 
Forum

1 1 year Cllr B Cannon

Cumbria Health  
Scrutiny 
Committee

1 + 2 subs 1 year Cllr C McCarron-
Holmes

Substitutes

Cllr J Ellis
Maryport Harbour 
Authority

1 3 Years Cllr A Kendall

Port of 3 3 Years Cllr B Cannon

Page 10



Workington 
Board Cllr M Heaslip

Cllr F Johnston

Name of Joint 
Committee

Number of 
representatives

Length of 
appointment

Nominated 
representatives

Cumbria Police & 
Crime Panel 
Joint Committee

1 1 year Cllr P Kendall

Solway Coast 
AONB Joint 
Advisory 
Committee

2 1 year Cllr J Colhoun

Cllr P Kendall

West Cumbria 
Cyclepath 
Network Steering 
Group

1 1 year Cllr J Colhoun

13. Calendar of Meetings 2018/19 

The Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer submitted a report which 
sought members to consider and approve the calendar of meetings for the 
period May 2018 to May 2019. 

Councillor J Ellis moved that the calendar of meetings be approved. Councillor 
A Smith seconded. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Resolved

That the calendar of meetings for the period May 2018 to May 2019 as set out 
in Appendix A of the report be approved.

The meeting closed at 7.05 pm

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



The Mayor, Councillor John Crouch

Engagements since the last Council meeting held on 2 May 2018

12 May 2018 Keswick Jazz Festival

16 May 2018 The Tempest, John Peel Theatre Company, Wigton

17 May 2018 Rock of Ages, Carnegie Theatre, Workington

23 May 2018 Memory Walk, Keswick Museum

26 May 2018 Wigton Spring Fling Art Exhibition

27 May 2018 Big Blind Walk, Caldbeck

2 June 2018 Queen of the Solway Dance Festival, Maryport

8 June 2018 Keswick Mountain Festival Opening Night

9 June 2018 Seaton Carnival

10 June 2018 Silloth Vintage Rally

15 June 2018 Tweddie Engineering, Wigton

22 June 2018 Pedal your way to Health Roadshow, High Seaton

23 June 2018 Wigton Carnival

Wigton Choral Society Summer Concert

25 June 2018 Raising The Flag for Armed Forces Day Ceremony

26 June 2018 Passing Out Parade West, Lakes College

27 June 2018 Healthy Cumberland Sausage Competition, Wigton

28 June 2018 Maryport Army Cadets Awards Night

29 June 2018 West Cumbria Society for the Blind Groups in Allerdale 
meeting, Workington

30 June 2018 Workington Chilli Festival

Dearham Carnival, Maryport

Sid8 Foundation Charity Night, Maryport

1 July 2018 Mayor of Kendal’s Sunday Parade and Civic Service

NHS 70 Year Celebrations, Carlisle Cathedral

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



2 July 2018 Lowering of Armed Forces Day Flag, Wokington

3 July 2018 Newman School – Castlerigg Retreat, Keswick

5 July 2018 St Joseph’s Catholic High School’s Annual Prize Evening, 
Workington

6 July 2018 Visit to Wigton Infant School for Democracy Week

Wigton and Solway Health Service League of Friends NHS 
70 Years Celebration

7 July 2018 Wigton Labour Party NHS Celebration

Flimby Carnival

Carnegie Singers Summer Concert, Workington

10 July 2018 Visit Caldbeck Parish Council 

11 July 2018 Chrysalis Annual General Meeting, Wigton

Active Cumbria, Cumbria School Games Finals, Carlisle

12 July 2018 Presentation of Mayor’s Chair

14 July 2018 Maryport Community Carnival

15 July 2018 Mayor of Millom’s Civic Service

16 July 2018 Drop in to Youth Council Meeting, Workington

Happy Hours Graduation, High Seaton, Workington

18 July 2018 Lunch with Chancellor of University of Cumbria, Carlisle

University of Cumbria Graduation Ceremony

19 July 2018 University of Central Lancashire Graduation Ceremony, 
Preston

22 July 2018 Mayor of Allerdale’s Civic Service, Wigton

24 July 2018 Visit to Twoey Toys

25 July 2018 Royal Visit to Cumbria

Page 14



The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Neil Schofield

Engagements since the last Council meeting held on 2 May 2018

17 June 2018 Lakesman Triathlon, Derwent Water

30 June 2018 Workington Royal British legion Armed Forces Day Celebration

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Allerdale Borough Council

Council – 25 July 2018

Portfolio Holder Updates

The Reason for the Decision To update Council on the activities and
decisions of Portfolio Holders since the last
meeting

Summary of options considered N/a

Recommendations That Members note the content of the report

Financial /  Resource Implications None arising directly from this report

Legal / Governance Implications None arising directly from this report

Community Safety Implications None arising directly from this report

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None arising directly from this report

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Not considered applicable to this report

Wards Affected As indicated in the main body of the report

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Portfolio Holder activity relates to the
development and delivery of the Council’s key 
priority themes

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Alan Smith – Leader of the Council 

Lead Officer Senior Management Team – as indicated

Report Implications 

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



1.0 Introduction

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide full Council with an update and 
overview of the activities of individual portfolio holders.

2.0 Content

The activities of the Portfolio Holders are as follows:

2.1 Leader of the Council: Cllr Alan Smith

Cumbria LEP
Lord Inglewood has been appointed as the new Chairman of the Cumbria 
Local Enterprise Partnership Board. We look forward to working with him and 
the new Chief Executive, Jo Lapping, as it embarks upon a new era. Work is 
well underway on developing a new Local Industrial Strategy for Cumbria 
which will replace the existing Strategic Economic Plan. There have been a 
number of consultative workshops in July and it is hoped that the strategy will 
be finalised towards to the end of the year. The LEP have also been 
consulting on a new Energy Strategy for Cumbria. This Plan will outline the 
low carbon energy advancements needed to facilitate sustainable economic 
growth and maximise opportunities for productivity, skills development, and 
decarbonisation.

New Council Website
The Council’s new website went live in May. The new site is designed to be 
clearer, concentrating on the Council’s services and making it easier for 
customers to complete tasks – such as reporting fly-tipping and making 
payments. Initial analysis of the analytics is positive with more reports coming 
in through the website than before and the search function is helping people 
find what they are after. Any comments and suggestions for improvement 
should be sent to the Communications and Marketing team.

Residents’ Survey
The Council's Residents' Survey is carried out every two years to find out how 
people feel about their local area. The survey looks at a number of issues 
including how residents feel about our Council’s services as well as those 
provided by partner organisations, what services are a priority for them, and 
how they view their local area and town. There are also questions about 
everyday living costs, health and wellbeing, and future job prospects.  The 
2018 survey went out to around 6,000 randomly selected households at the 
end of June and is being undertaken for us by a specialist research company.  
In 2016 the results showed that 73% of respondents were satisfied with our 
Council's services, up from 39% in 2008. Some 82% of people were satisfied 
with their local area as a place to live.  I'd encourage everyone who gets a 
survey to take the time to respond. It really is important to us to understand 
what issues our communities face and what their priorities are and the results 
will go towards developing our future plans.

Page 18



Borderlands
The inaugural Borderlands Conference was held in Dumfries on 18 June. The 
event afforded an opportunity to hear more about the proposed Borderlands 
Inclusive Growth Deal that bring together authorities on both sides of the 
England-Scotland border from those involved in the partnership. Proposals 
will be submitted later this year to the UK and Scottish Governments on 
potential programmes and projects that could be supported through the deal. 

Social Impact Investment Fund
The small grants fund has made two awards. The two successful applicants to 
date have been Harbourside in Maryport (£10,000) and Solway Connections 
in Silloth (£5,500). If members would like more information on the small grants 
scheme or would like to know if businesses they are working with could be 
eligible for a grant then please contact Andrea Hines in the Strategy, Policy 
and Performance team. 
The Council has also made a commitment to continue to support the Growth 
Hub with a £50,000 grant to ensure that support is available for new start 
businesses in Allerdale. The funding for this will be made from the element of 
the SIIF that supports delivery of the Allerdale Growth Plan.  

Tackling Poverty
An in-house ‘Tackling Poverty Delivery Board’ has been established, the 
action plan has been reviewed and an implementation plan is being 
developed. At the last Executive meeting resources were allocated to support 
various organisations which underpin delivery of key objectives within the 
Tackling Poverty Action Plan.

2.2 Deputy Leader: Economic Growth Portfolio: Cllr Mark Fryer

Wigton Facelift Scheme
The Wigton facelift scheme has generated over 40 applications following on 
from the success of the Maryport scheme in 2017/18.

Allerdale Days
Allerdale Days in Manchester, our outdoor exhibition in Albert Square, 
Manchester 10 and 11 August 2018, is a unique opportunity for Allerdale 
businesses to reach new customers, sell and raise their profile with 
Manchester customers and businesses. Among 35 exhibiting companies are 
M Sport, Senhouse Roman Museum, Lakes Distillery, Iggesund Paperboard, 
Jennings Brewery, Honister, Lakes College and nuclear partners, University 
of Cumbria, UCLan, Whinlatter Forest Park, Tour of Britain and Taste 
Cockermouth on Tour.

Supporting tourism businesses
Support for the soon to open Silloth Motorcycle Museum has been provided 
including marketing and business planning advice.

Page 19



Marketing support has been provided for Hunter Leisure Group Ltd, who are 
developing high quality accommodation, a restaurant and gym at Bowness 
House Farm in Bowness on Solway.

Lillyhall 
The purchase of land at Lillyhall from HCA previously agreed by the Executive 
has now been completed.

2.3 Governance and People Resources Portfolio: Cllr Joan Ellis 
 

Assurance, Risk & Audit 
The Assurance Risk and Audit Team have completed the planned work for 
2018/19. The 2018/19 Audit Strategy and Annual Plan was approved by the 
Audit Committee on 7 June 2018. 
A full refresh of the format of the Annual Governance Statement was 
completed this year. Many thanks to the Governance Group for all their hard 
work gathering and collating the evidence to support this. The draft Annual 
Governance Statement was approved by Audit Committee on 7 June 2018. 
No significant areas for improvement were identified.

Legal Services
The team continues to support the Authority in the delivery of the Council’s 
priorities and objectives, as well as contributing to the successful 
implementation of corporate projects by working closely with officers from 
across all services, elected members and the public.
Legal Services has continued to provide significant support to the Community 
Services team in procurement of the waste contract.  The team has also 
provided support across the departments to assist with the introduction of the 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) which came into force in May 
2018.  Licensing enforcement and compliance work has been ongoing, with a 
focus upon debt recovery.  The team has also assisted with a variety of 
property matters such as the acquisition of land at Lillyhall.

Democratic Services
The Member Development Working Group has approved the programme of 
learning and development activities for members for 2018/19. Please keep an 
eye out for the programme coming out shortly. We encourage all members to 
attend as many training opportunities as possible.
The Group also began planning for a comprehensive induction programme 
set to follow the Allerdale Borough elections in May 2019.
I can confirm the Council will be working towards achieving its reaccreditation 
with North West Employers to retain the Charter for Elected Member 
Development over the next twelve to eighteen months. The Member 
Development Working Group would appreciate members’ co-operation and 
engagement in assisting this process.

Page 20



Members are reminded about the GDPR and data protection e-learning 
training modules you were asked to complete. These are very short 
informative training tools, which take 20 minutes to complete followed by a 
short 10 question quiz. For those who are interested in completing more, 
members now have full access to all of the e-modules available ranging from 
communication skills, adult safeguarding, complaints management to 
customer care.
Please can I also remind all members to regularly review their Register of 
Interest forms and ensure they are up to date? These forms are published 
under the Councillor details on the intranet/internet. Alternatively contact 
Democratic Services.  

Community Safety
The Allerdale Multi-Agency Problem Solving Hub was officially opened in 
June during an event at which speakers from the police, Allerdale Borough 
Council, the Probation Service and the County Council were joined by a 
variety of other agencies to celebrate the excellent work to date and to make 
clear our shared commitment to partnership working. Officers have worked 
with partner agencies on multiple cross-cutting issues including cases of anti-
social behaviour, hoarding, nuisance, and licensing. The ‘joined-up’ approach 
to addressing these issues will assist the Council in continuing to achieve its 
priorities, particularly its aims of tackling inequality, improving our health and 
wellbeing and enhancing our towns.

Electoral Services
The team has successfully migrated all elector data to a new software 
platform, Elector8. The new system will enable more communication via 
digital channels and offers a range of solutions to running the canvass, 
appointing and communicating with staff as well as managing elections and 
the election count. 
The annual household canvass will begin in July. All households in Allerdale 
will receive a form on or around 1 August asking them to update and confirm 
elector details. Last year our Visiting Registration Officers focussed on making 
contact with residential homes to ensure the staff understood the process and 
that residents were properly registered. This year the focus will be on young 
people, ensuring those aged 16 and 17 are registered so that they are able to 
vote as soon as they turn 18. 
Community Governance Reviews are underway in Workington, Broughton, 
Embleton, Keswick and Winscales. Final proposals will be submitted to 
Council before the end of the year. Following the Local Government Boundary 
Commission review of Allerdale and in preparation for the May 2019 council 
elections, a polling district and polling station review will begin in early 
September and will be reported to Council in December. 

Licensing & Land Charges
The Licensing Team have been working to procure both a driving test and 
knowledge test for taxi drivers in order to improve the quality of drivers’ 

Page 21



practical skills and knowledge. A pilot scheme will run for six months for the 
driving assessment and a company has been appointed to carry out that 
work. The consultation process for the knowledge test is complete and a 
report was presented to the Licensing Committee on 4 July 2018 to consider 
the responses and whether the knowledge test should be implemented.

People Resources
All employees have completed the E-Learning training relating to Data 
Protection and GDPR. It has been agreed that all mandatory training including 
‘Prevent’ training will be completed by the end of August 2018. 
The Organisational Development Strategy is now in draft and will be shared 
with management initially for approval. This sets out a strategy to shape the 
culture at Allerdale Borough Council to deliver our exciting and ambitious 
business plans.

2.4 Transformation Portfolio: Cllr Konrad Hansen 

It has been a busy period across the Transformation Portfolio since the last 
meeting of this council. I am very pleased with the continuing innovation, 
drive, and dedication the team continue to show.

Commissioning and procurement 
New vehicles procured through the team as part of the fleet replacement 
programme have now arrived and include our first electric car, the Nissan 
Leaf, which will be used mainly by Customer Service staff travelling to our 
area offices and ICT staff supporting equipment around the district. I am 
pleased that we are providing these necessary updates to our fleet not only 
on a cost effective basis but also within the scope of being more 
environmentally friendly.
The team are continuing to identify savings once existing contracts expire for 
corporate goods and services. The Corporate Contract Register has been 
introduced to record all contracts over a value of £25K. This will assist in 
managing contracts through their life and identify savings and efficiencies 
through negotiation in some areas. A programme of contract training for 
managers is currently being planned for roll out.

Programme Office
A number of service reviews have been planned and are underway including 
in both the Finance and Housing areas. There has been continued 
development of myAllerdale with lost/broken bins now able to be reported 
24/7. Also live this quarter is a new on-line direct debit mandate form.
Further development work currently underway includes a change of address 
form, a larger bin requests form and an online booking service enabling 
customers to book and pay for bulky waste collections and pest control 
appointments online.
A mobile working system has been implemented for our Visiting Officers and 
will be used when carrying out the empty properties review for 2018.

Page 22



ICT 
It has been a busy time for ICT with the implementation of a new elections 
management system and the installation and commissioning of a new, more 
efficient, storage solution to replace the current hardware and provide us with 
our ongoing storage requirements until all services are cloud based. In 
addition, the team are heavily involved in the development of Arcus, a new 
business platform that will assist in the transformation of services across 
many areas of the council.
The team has also managed the migration at all of our area offices from the 
expensive BT network to our own private network operating over the internet.  
This can be enabled at any site where broadband is enabled, and can even 
be utilised with 3/4G networks.
Security of our network and the data contained within it are paramount. During 
the previous quarter the Council was the victim of a denial of service attack. 
As expected the work the team put into securing the network paid off and our 
defences held up well. Following this a review has led us to implement a 
number of additional counter measures to reduce the potential risk of such an 
attack in the future including implementation of WebCheck - a Government 
Digital Service offered by GCHQ. This service provides security and 
availability monitoring to our web based facilities. 
The GIS platform has been replaced. The new solution is cloud based, 
enabling us to more easily integrate with our new applications as they are 
developed using cloud-based technologies.
The ICT Service are going through a significant technical training programme 
with courses on products such as Salesforce, Azure, Private Cloud 
enablement and more.

Digital Allerdale
The platform to support the Internet of Things Pilot has been prepared and 
devices are in the process of being deployed.  The Pilot will enable Allerdale 
and our partners to gain an understanding how these technologies may be 
used to enable improved service delivery across a wide range of areas.
A tender exercise has been undertaken to procure a system to provide free 
Wi-Fi across a number of Allerdale town centres.  Using an innovative 
approach the solution can be enabled at little to no cost to the Council.  Once 
the contract has been awarded the next phase will be to carry out the 
installation.

Customer Operations (Revenues & Benefits, Council Tax, Customer 
Service Centre)
With one of our busiest times of the year now behind us it's pleasing to report 
that our KPIs within the department for Q1 2018 compared to Q1 2017 
continue to show improvement across the board and we will continue to 
scrutinise our current procedures to identify any areas where we can still 
make further performance improvements. 

Page 23



The rate at which customers are migrating to Universal Credit has slowed 
over the last few months as the government have moved some claimants 
back to claiming housing benefit. Two of the main groups affected are the 
homeless and new claim families with three children or more. With effect from 
25 July 2018 Carlisle Job Centre Plus will follow the Workington Office in 
moving to a Universal Credit Full Service Delivery centre for claimants. This 
will encompass our residents in the Wigton area and mean the whole of 
Allerdale will be under Full Service Delivery.  
The department is currently undertaking its annual review of all homes that 
have been empty for more than five months. Initial enquiry letters were issued 
on 8 June 2018 and for those failing to respond home visits will start on 2 July 
2018. All visits are expected to be completed before 30 Sept 2018. 
A new joint pilot that invites customers to make their initial claims for housing 
benefit and/or a council tax reduction via an office-based interview started on 
2 July 2018. This will explore whether it is possible to further improve our 
current 15 day average processing times and bring speedier payments or 
revised bills to our customers. The pilot is expected to last 6 months and 
results will shape the way we deliver customer service for this client group in 
the future. 
A new project started in April 18 in partnership with DWP and HMRC to help 
trace housing benefit debtors where all other avenues of recovery have been 
exhausted. Initial returns are looking promising with a success rate of 37% 
and debts of £3,023 being recovered within the first three months.

2.5 Environmental Quality Portfolio: Cllr Michael Heaslip 

Environment Heritage Initiatives
The main works to Harrington Reservoir are complete and a re-opening event 
is planned for 8 September.
The Workington Hall Park - Stage 1 HLF bid is due for submission at end of 
August. 
Design of the Siddick Pond Bird Hide exhibition is being finalised for 
installation in August/September along with habitat creation works. A Water 
Environment Grant application has been made for £190K over 3 years.
The HLF funded report on “Resilient Heritage” in Workington is complete. 
Workington Nature Partnership is considering how best to implement it.
Cumbria Wildlife Trust has been successful in securing funding for the 
“Coastlines” Pollinator project development phase, with a small contribution 
as match from this Council. This is a very important piece of work: it is 
estimated humans have no more than five years on the planet if the 
pollinators die out!
There is some cobbling work still to complete in Fleming Square (Maryport) 
and tenders for design/consultation on the Central Way Underpass 
(Workington) are to be returned on 9 July. Artwork for the Confluence, 
Cockermouth is held up pending Environment Agency approval.

Page 24



Council Sport and Play Facilities
GLL is developing plans for outdoor activities on the grass outside Workington 
Sports Centre.
The Executive agreed £87,000 capital funding towards a new gym facility at 
the Wave, which should reduce the cost of the Wave to the Council over the 
next six years by £250k. The GLL contract for the Wave is in the process of 
being extended to 2024 (to coincide with the Sports Centre contract) to enable 
the investment and savings to be made.
Design contractors are looking at the pitches at Moorclose (formerly part of 
Workington Leisure Centre) to create a football hub on the site in association 
with Cumberland FA.
A youth recreation area and panna football court has been completed next to 
Ellis Sports Ground Workington in partnership with Castle and Coasts HA and 
Workington Town Council and is being transferred to the Town Council.
The transfer of Vulcan Park Workington to Workington Town Council is 
imminent and should have taken place by the time this report is published. 
That leaves Harris Park, Cockermouth as the only municipal park still in 
Allerdale Council care.

Sport Development
A Cockermouth Sports Facilities study is under way with initial findings due in 
July. 
We are helping Silloth Sports Association with an application for Sport 
England support for a small all-weather playing area. 
The Tour of Britain the UK’s most prestigious cycle race, which will travel 
through Allerdale on 7 September and is preceded by a Sprint from 
Cockermouth town centre to the top of Whinlatter on 6 September, and will be 
complemented by a community programme in partnership with Cumbria 
County Council. This will include a junior summer cycle challenge; cycle 
training sessions; lead cycle rides; cycle leader training sessions and taster 
sessions at Watchtree Nature Reserve.
Maryport people have been asked for their favourite short walks, five of which 
we will waymark and promote to encourage people to get out and walk more; 
training is being provided for "Walking for Health” leaders.
“10p swims” will be available for youngsters again in pools across Allerdale 
this summer.

Bereavement Services
The first half of the year has seen above average burial figures for this time of 
year. It is not clear yet whether this is associated with the fall in life 
expectancy reported since 2011 or whether the numbers will return to the 
norm. If it does continue, it will put pressure on our burial space in cemeteries. 
It is estimated to be just 5 years of space remaining in Cockermouth and initial 
work has begun to identify future burial space.

Page 25



Cremated remains vaults are now available for people to purchase in 
Maryport Cemetery.
Salterbeck Cemetery gates are now closed to vehicles, except for funerals 
and maintenance of the Cemetery, so cars and vans can no longer be driven 
round the cemetery damaging footpaths graves and headstones. The Council 
has received a number of compliments in taking this course of action.

Open Spaces
The Council is working with West Cumbria Rivers Trust and the Environment 
Agency on plans for better and more sustainable management of river 
catchments in Allerdale. A Lower Derwent Working Group, led by the Council, 
has been established to better manage the Derwent downstream of the 
Marron where the Council is main riparian landowner.
Plans for an Internal Drainage Board for Waver-Wampool have been dropped 
for the foreseeable future, as it would need primary legislation. Waver – 
Wampool Water Management will now be undertaken through the general 
Catchment Management process.

Parking
Changes to the way parking enforcement is implemented is proving 
successful, and penalty charge notices have seen a 58% increase in the first 
month, and continue to rise. 
Work continues on an upgrade to the Multi Storey Car Park and painting 
works will be carried out in August. Improved signage is being provided, to 
direct people using the town centre towards the Car Park. 
New direction signs on approach roads pointing visitors to car parks have 
been installed in Keswick and further improvements to signage in Car Parks 
will follow in Workington, Cockermouth and other town centres.

Street Scene 
The volunteer based community clean-ups organised by the Council are 
proving very popular and a number of these have already taken place in 
Flimby, Allonby, Plumbland, Aspatria and Seaton, with more planned over the 
summer. We support shore clean-ups as well, where they are not already part 
of the regular cleansing programme.  Councillors and members of the public 
should contact the Street Scene Team directly if they want to participate or 
have an area to suggest.
A ‘Making Allerdale a litter bit better’ campaign was launched with a poster 
competition and litter pick with Ashfield Junior School. We intend to capitalise 
on this campaign and roll it out to a number of schools and other areas across 
Allerdale.
We are about to trial some new technology, which will help us know when 
street bins are full and help ensure they are emptied and available for use. 
We continually review where street bins are located and encourage 
suggestions of where bins should be placed to help keep our areas as clean 
and free from litter as possible.  

Page 26



We are going to look at changing the planting regime in some of the street-
planting sites to be more useful to pollinators.
 
Waste and Recycling
Prices of a number of recycled materials, including paper and card hit a 
historic low in 2017-18, which had an adverse effect on the bottom line of this 
business. Prices have recovered slightly over recent months, but we still 
expect a shortfall against forecast income for the year.
The commercial waste business continues to grow steadily as we seek out 
new customers who can benefit from this valuable service provided by the 
Council.  

2.6 Tourism and Culture Portfolio: Cllr William Jefferson  

Allerdale visitor website
Our new website, www.visitallerdale.co.uk is now live. The website will 
underpin our efforts to grow the value of the visitor economy in our Borough.

Festivals and events
We are delivering three festivals in Workington adding to Workington Town 
Centre’s growing vibrancy and making it more attractive to visitors. They are 
Chillifest and Reboot, both were held on 30 June 2018, the International Food 
Market, 3 - 5 August 2018 and a Music and Laughter Festival scheduled for 
22 September 2018.
Financial support continues this year for Taste Cumbria in Cockermouth, 29 
and 30 September 2018, Taste Cumbria Christmas Market, 8 and 9 
December 2018 and Cockermouth Live, was held 29 June – 1 July 2018, due 
to the large number of visitors they attracts and the resulting visitor spend in 
the town.

2.7 Housing, Health and Wellbeing Portfolio: Cllr Carni McCarron-
Holmes 

Environmental Protection
We have started a new bathing water season which will see the use of the 
new electronic sign positioned at Allonby toilet block saving officers valuable 
time. Our objective in accordance with the Business Plan is to maintain a 
"good" classification at Allonby.
Our Air Quality Status report has been produced and submitted to DEFRA for 
approval. We have no exceedances to report and still continue to have the 
lowest measured concentration of fine particulate matter in England at 
5.2 ug/m3.
New data published recently by Public Health England indicates that in 
Allerdale we have the lowest mortality rates attributed to particulate air quality 
in the country which is good news!

Page 27

http://www.visitallerdale.co.uk/


New Private Water Supply Regulations 2018 are coming into force in July 
2018. The regulations introduce the opportunity to apply a risk-based 
approach to monitoring and a requirement to sample new parameters 
previously not tested. This will lead to an increase in sampling for the team to 
deliver the new regime for the next three years. It will also result in an 
increase in charges for the customer. We are sending letters out to all private 
water supply owners who will be affected by the new changes.

Food Safety
The team has been bolstered by the addition of two new members, Craig 
Liddle from the Environmental Protection team and Stuart Pike all the way 
from Vancouver. Both are currently undergoing internal competency training 
prior to embarking on high risk inspections. 
As members of the Cumbria Food Liaison Group the team have worked with 
fellow EHO’s to prepare a new inspection scheme based on charging 
businesses who request a re-rating under the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme. 
It is the intention to develop a fee structure using broadly similar charging 
calculation methodology across Cumbria.   
Annual Returns have been submitted to the auditing bodies Food Standards 
Agency and the Health and Safety Executive.

Pest Control
Now that a key member of staff has returned to work, the team are looking to 
develop and expand the pest control contracting work presently undertaken. 
This will initially involve a focus on the farming community many of whom 
have already been contacted over recent weeks.

Terrorism and Prevent
An Internal Prevent Group has been established in order to address the 
Prevent statutory obligations that the Council has to adhere to, and as part of 
the on line training we have included Prevent training and made it mandatory 
for all Allerdale employees. A training session has been held for the Executive 
and one is to be arranged for all Council Members.

Emergency Planning and Resilience
The team have continued to support the Environment Agency on flood 
alleviation measures to support our communities most at risk from flooding. 
Most recently, community drop-ins have taken place to advise communities on 
projects that are likely to take place across Allerdale. 
The manager is currently working with Cumbria County Council in revising the 
main Allerdale Emergency Plan and the Roles of SMT in Emergencies Plan. 
He has also led on the production of a new flood registration system which 
once approved will be used across Cumbria.

Dry Weather
The prolonged low rainfall across the North West since early May, has 
reduced river flows, reservoir and lake levels. Water is a precious resource 

Page 28



and it is always helpful, in terms of future supplies and protecting the 
environment, for everyone to follow advice on saving water from their water 
company and use water wisely. Please help us promote water efficiency with 
your contacts. United Utilities’ top tips for saving water, energy and money 
include the following:
1. Only wash full loads in your washing machine or dishwasher
2. Use a bucket and sponge to wash your car, rather than a hose-pipe
3. Have a four-minute shower, instead of a bath
4. Turn the tap off when brushing your teeth
5. Install a water butt to collect rainwater for watering your garden (see our 
website for discounted products)
6. Water your garden early in the morning or in the evening, when it is cooler.
You can read more on their website at www.unitedutilities.com
As always, if people see any environmental impacts due to dry weather, such 
as low flows, fish in distress or algae blooms, please report it to the 
Environment Agency incident line on 0800 80 70 60 so we can investigate and 
minimise any potential impacts on the environment.

Homelessness
The team are successfully working within the constraints of the new Homeless 
Reduction Act and holding area meetings with all Cumbrian Authorities to 
develop best practice and unified approaches.
Our bid to fund a Domestic Violence Officer on 14 hours per week on a fixed 
12-month contract and to adapt one of our temporary accommodation units to 
install additional safety measures has been successful. The post will be 
advertised soon.
In addition, the team are currently advertising for a Housing Options Officer to 
work three days per week covering maternity until November 2018.

Corporate Health and Safety
The fire risk assessment and action plan for Workington Town Hall has been 
revised and regular internal fire management meetings are being held. In 
addition, the fire risk assessments for Maryport Town Hall and Keswick Town 
Hall are also being reviewed.
Also, work has started on the production of a new Display Screen Equipment 
Policy and First Aid training has been arranged for a number of staff with a 
further training session to be held for staff in our outer offices including the 
AONB.

Harrington Harbour
Work is ongoing with Trinity House to ensure aids to navigation comply with 
statutory guidelines. All health and safety management plans revised and 
agreed.

Page 29

http://www.unitedutilities.com/


Housing Support
Community Housing Fund grants have been awarded to Keswick Community 
Housing Trust, Keswick Youth Centre and Above Derwent Community Land 
Trust to fund pre development costs for much needed affordable housing. 
Building on the £772k funding the council received in 2016 to support the 
development of community housing the team eagerly await an announcement 
from government on the level and accessibility of further funding. This should 
be announced in July and I will provide further information in my next report. 
So far this year the team have awarded almost £422k towards adapting the 
homes of people with disabilities. This is a tremendous achievement so early 
in the year and a further £1000k is committed to other adaptations as we 
progress through the year.    
Home Group are setting up a digital pilot project starting July 2018 in the 
Allerdale area which will last for three months.  They are looking to test the 
pilot with five existing customers, and the Council has been advised that this 
should be easy and intuitive, and be an easier way for customers to pay their 
rent/look at their accounts etc.  They are predominately looking at working 
with those on Universal Credits in the Allerdale area as they are already linked 
in digitally. Home Group have informed us that they will inform us of the 
outcome of the pilot and next steps.

Housing Enforcement
Following the adoption of Allerdale’s Private Sector Housing Enforcement 
Policy earlier in the year the first Civil Penalty case is being prepared for a 
Landlord that has failed to comply with a Housing Act Improvement Notice. 
Proposed fine likely to be in excess of £15,000. 

2.8 Corporate Resources (Finance and Property) Portfolio: Cllr 
Barbara Cannon 

78 High St. Maryport
We have completed the conversion of High St. public toilets, Maryport into two 
one bedroom flats. We are considering using the potential letting of the 
properties as a first step in to looking at forming a ‘Housing Company’. 

Multi Storey Car Park
The installation of a new emergency lighting system is now complete. 

Workington Hall 
Scheduled monument consent has been obtained for a further phase of repair 
and consolidation works which should allow us to get the building off the at 
risk register. The works are subject to a grant application to Heritage England 
which has still not been determined.

Page 30



Public toilets 
We are currently waiting to hear from Aspatria Town Council as to whether 
they are interested in taking over the public toilets in the Town. The offer to 
the Town Council involves a full refurbishment of the properties.
We have had feedback from the toilet operators in Keswick to say that they 
are not interested in taking over the Grange toilets in Borrowdale. If no other 
suitable organisation comes forward, we intend to sell the toilets.

 
Business Continuity
We are currently reviewing and updating our Business Continuity system to 
make it more ‘fit for purpose’ and hopefully easier to access and use in the 
event of an emergency.

Statement of Accounts
In line with the revised statutory timetable the Council’s unaudited 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement (AGS) were 
published on the Council’s website on 31 May. 
The Statement of Accounts and AGS are currently being audited by the 
Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton and will be presented for approval 
by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 27 July. Thereafter the audited 
statement of accounts and AGS will be published on the Council’s website no 
later than 31 July.

 
Treasury management annual review 2017/18
The treasury management annual report setting out details of the Council's 
treasury management activities during the year has been completed and will 
be presented to the Audit Committee at its meeting on 27 July. As with the 
Statement of Accounts this represents a one month reduction in the time 
taken to issue this report to members following the end of the financial year.

 
Training
The financial services team has continued with its programme of finance 
training for non-finance staff. Over recent months this training has included:
 training for new staff on the completion of year end data packs to support 

production of the Statement of Accounts and the Authority’s financial 
outturn

 these sessions were supplemented by drop in sessions to answer specific 
queries and provide 1 to 1 support for staff

 Quarterly finance cascade to raise awareness of the Authority’s financial 
outturn position for 2017/18 - feedback from those attending these training 
events remains extremely positive with 100% rating the latest event ‘good’ 
or ‘excellent’.

3.0 Recommendations

3.1 That Members note the content of the report.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 21 February 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson

Staff Present

B Carlin, A FitzGerald, I Frost, A Gilbert, N Hardy, I Hinde, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, 
G Roach, A Seekings, E Thompson, L Tomlinson, G Wilson and P Wood

Also Present

B Miskelly

346. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 24 January 2018 of Executive 

The minutes of the meeting were signed as a correct record.

347. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

348. Questions 

None received.

349. Members' Announcements 

None received.

350. Tackling Poverty Strategy 

The subject of the decision

The Co-Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee submitted a report for 
the Executive members to consider and approve recommendations made by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group on a review of the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy. Councillor B Miskelly presented the report on behalf of the 
Co-Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Executive felt strongly there was an urgent need for Central Government to 
recognise the problems experienced with poverty, and in particular the specific 
issues faced in rural areas such as Allerdale. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



Councillor M Fryer asked that the recommended priorities detailed in paragraph 
8.4 of the report be given parity and moved an amendment to recommendation 
4, of the report to remove the reference of prioritisation.
This was seconded by Councillor B Cannon. 

A vote was taken on the amended motion: 8 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions.
The amended motion was unanimously agreed.

Members thanked Councillor B Miskelly and the members of the Task and 
Finish Group for the work undertaken and a very comprehensive report.  

Alternative options considered

To amend, or not to approve, the recommendations proposed by the Overview 
and Scrutiny task and Finish Group.

The reason for the decision

The Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group had carried out a review of 
the Tackling Poverty Strategy and members were asked to approve a new draft 
Strategy with supporting recommendations.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The revised Tackling Poverty Strategy November 2017 be adopted

2. The Council gives priority to support and advice services for Allerdale 
residents

3. Future Council reports include greater detail of intended or current 
partnership working and incorporate 'tackling poverty' as part of the report 
implications list, with details given in the body of the report

4. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s proposed significant areas for future 
Council support and investment be adopted.

351. Q3 Performance Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) submitted a 
report to advise Members on the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 
three 2017/18, covering the period from 1 October to 31 December 2017, as 
measured by projects/activities and KPIs set out in the Corporate Business Plan 
2017/18.

Members considered and noted the progress made against each of the key 
projects and activities set out in the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18. 

Page 34



The report contained 71 projects/activities and 52 key performance indicators. 
Of the projects/activities 7 were marked as complete, 54 were on target and 10 
had concerns over their deadlines or outputs being achieved. 
Of the listed KPIs, 28 were on target, 10 had concerns on their target being 
achieved, 9 had significant concerns and 5 were not targeted.

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

None

The reason for the decision

To advise members of progress on the Corporate Business Plan 
priorities/activities and KPIs at the end of quarter three 2017/18.

The decision

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

352. Quarter 3 Finance Report April to December 2017 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members of the Council’s financial performance against budget for the period 
April to December 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

Members noted the headline messages at the end of quarter 3 2017/18, being:
Revenue Budget

(i) Expenditure from the revenue budget, excluding projects 
funded from earmarked reserves, was forecast to exceed 
budget by £196k 

(ii) There was an anticipated increase in income from Taxation & 
Government Grants of £273k

(iii) This projected outturn position would result in a contribution to 
the Councils General Fund of £77k
Earmarked Reserves Budget

(iv) Expenditure from the earmarked reserves was forecast to 
underspend by £463k

(v) Of this underspend £453k would be reprofiled between financial 
years, leaving a net underspend of £10k
Capital Budget

Page 35



(vi) Expenditure from the capital budget was forecast to underspend 
by £1,861k

(vii) Of this underspend £1,814k would be reprofiled between 
financial years leaving a net underspend of £47k
Other

(viii) Performance in relation to the payment of creditor invoices 
continued to improve with the payment of non-Allerdale 
suppliers achieving the 98% target for quarter 3

(ix) No new external borrowing was undertaken during the third 
quarter of 2017/18

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendation. This was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

To inform Members of the Council’s financial performance against budget for 
the period April to December 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 
2018.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

353. Capital Investment Strategy 2018/19 to 2019/20 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report for members to approve a 
Capital Investment Strategy for 2018/19 to 2019/20. A strategy which had been 
developed to define at the highest level how the capital programme was to be 
determined, that identified the issues and options that influenced capital 
spending and that set out how the resources and capital programme would be 
managed.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the Strategy.

Page 36



The reason for the decision

To agree a document setting out the Councils ambitions and priorities over the 
medium to longer term and that provided a framework for the review and 
management of existing assets. A document which also indicated the 
opportunities for partnership working and had a direct relationship with the 
Treasury Management Strategy and the opportunities and limitations on activity 
through the Treasury Management prudential indicators. 

The decision

Recommended: 

That Council be requested to agree that the Capital Investment Strategy 
2018/19 to 2019/20 be approved and following best practice it be renewed on 
an annual basis to ensure a strong link to the Councils priorities.

354. Draft Revenue & Capital Budget Proposals 2018/19 

The subject of the decision: 

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to present to 
Members the draft revenue and capital budget and the formal advice of the 
chief financial officer on the robustness of the estimates included in the budget 
and the adequacy of the reserves which supported the Council’s budgetary 
plans.

Consultations informing the 2018/19 budget process comprised of a survey of 
residents undertaken during July and August 2016 and a budget consultation 
focusing on specific budget issues, carried out during December 2017 and 
January 2018.

Councillor B Cannon advised members of some amendments to the report, 
namely Appendices C and D. 
Under Appendix C, to move £50k recurring growth between the Economic 
Growth Portfolio to the Localities and Environmental Quality Portfolio, and the 
relating recurring growth bids detailed on page 205 of Appendix D.

Members thanked the chief finance officer, the Financial Services Team and 
senior managers for their contribution to the development of the draft budget 
proposals.

Councillor B Cannon moved the amendments to the report and the 
recommendations contained within the report. This was seconded by Councillor 
A Smith. The recommendations including amendments to the report were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

Page 37



The reason for the decision:

The Council’s statutory requirement to approve a balanced budget.

The decision:

Recommended:

That Council be requested to agree that:

1. The total planned revenue expenditure be £15,670,916 including parish 
precepts of £2,024,054

2. £14,604,435 be approved as the Council’s net Budget requirement for 
2018-19

3. An increase in Council Tax of £5 on band D Properties, with 
proportionate increases being applied to properties in other council tax 
bands, be approved

4. No changes be made to the Council’s Council Tax Reduction discount 
scheme and that the current scheme remained in place for 2018-19

5. The amount of council tax support funding to be paid to Town and Parish 
Council be set at £20,666 (Appendix A)

6. The revenue estimates as approved be used in the calculation of the 
basic amount of tax under Section 31 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992

7. The minimum level of non-earmarked general fund balances be set at 
£2.7m and that no maximum level be set

8. That the capital budget of £18,972,755 (comprising £14,592,755 in 2018-
19, £2,340,000 in 2019-20 and £2,040,000 in 2020-21) be approved

9. That the proposed capital budget for 2018-19 be financed as follows:
 grants and contributions …..£9,043,255 
 borrowing………………...….£5,530,000
 revenue …………………………..£3,500
 earmarked reserves ………….. £16,000

355. Hackney Carriage Vehicles – Annual Review of Table of Fares 

The subject of the decision

The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which sought 
members to consider and approve the recommendations made by the Licensing 
Committee held on 28 November 2017 to amend the table of fares charged by a 
hackney carriage.

Councillor J Ellis moved the report and recommendations.

Councillor M Fryer moved an amendment to recommendation 4 in the report, 
requesting that the commencement time of Tariff 2 remained at 12am.

Page 38



Councillor M Fryer stated that the commencement of Tariff 2 had been 12am for 
a number of year without issue and raised that as the general trend for people 
going out was now later in the evening, he had concerns about raising the 
charges to earlier in the evening. Councillor Fryer also highlighted the change 
would conflict with Tariff 3 on Christmas Eve and New Years Eve.  
Councillor M Heaslip agreed that 12am was a reasonable time before bringing 
in a premium charge and seconded the amendment.

A vote was taken on the amended motion: 8 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
The amended motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

To retain the table of fares as existing, to approve the recommendations made 
by the Licensing Committee held on 28 November 2017 or to amend the table 
of fares in accordance with economic considerations.  

The reason for the decision

To consider, in light of current economic circumstances, whether the table of 
fares charged by a hackney carriage be changed and if so, to what level.

The decision

Resolved:

That:
1. The fare be increased from £2.90 to £3.20 for the following:

a) if the distance does not exceed 1.6 kilometres (1 mile) for the whole 
distance

b) if the distance exceeds 1.6 kilometres (1 mile) for the first kilometre (1 
mile)

2. The waiting time be increased to 45p for each period of three minutes or 
uncompleted part thereof; 

3. The tariff be increased for each article of luggage conveyed outside the 
passenger compartment or the carriage for the whole distance to 20p; 
and

4. Tariff 2 to commence at 12am.

356. Appointment of Representative to Energy Coast West Cumbria Ltd. 

The subject of the decision:

The Democratic and Support Services Officer submitted a report which sought 
the Executive to appoint a Member to serve as the Council’s representative on 
the Energy Coast West Cumbria Ltd., Energy Coast West Cumbria (Properties) 

Page 39



Limited and Energy Coast West Cumbria (Workspace) Limited outside bodies 
following the resignation of Councillor M Fryer.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendation contained within the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor M Heaslip. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

Not to appoint a representative on to the outside bodies.

The reason for the decision:

To appoint a Member to serve as the Council’s representative following the 
resignation of Councillor M Fryer.

The decision:

Resolved:

That Councillor A Smith be appointed to serve on the Energy Coast West 
Cumbria Ltd., Energy Coast West Cumbria (Properties) Limited and Energy 
Coast West Cumbria (Workspace) Limited outside bodies until 7 July 2019, to 
replace Councillor M Fryer.

The meeting closed at 11.30 am

Page 40



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 21 March 2018 at 2.00 pm

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes
 

Staff Present

B Carlin, A FitzGerald, I Frost, N Hardy, C Holmes, K Kerrigan, G Roach, A Seekings, 
G Wilson and P Wood

400. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 21 February 2018 of Executive 

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

401. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

402. Questions 

None received.

403. Members' Announcements 

None received.

404. Corporate Business Plan 2018/19 

The subject of the decision

The Chief Executive submitted a report for members to approve the 2018/19 
Corporate Business Plan which set out the specific activity that would be 
undertaken over the next 12 months to work towards achieving the objectives in 
the Council Plan.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendation. This was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously agreed.  

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the draft Plan or to make any other amendments.

The reason for the decision

Page 41



Members approval of the Corporate Business Plan for 2018/19. The Plan was 
to be the proposed vehicle by which the Council would report progress against 
the Council Plan 2015-2019 commitments.

The decision

Resolved:

That the draft Corporate Business Plan 2018/19, as presented at Appendix A of 
the report, be approved. 

405. Setting Equality objectives 2018/19 

The subject of the decision

The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) submitted a 
report asking members to agree a refreshed set of equality objectives in line 
with the Councils statutory requirements to have them in place under the Public 
Sector Equality Duty.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The motion was unanimously agreed. 

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the draft equality objectives or to make any other amendments.

The reason for the decision

The Councils previous equality objectives were out of date and due for a refresh 
in line with new regulations.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The equality objectives, as set out in paragraph 3.6 of the report, be 
agreed

2. The Councils equality objectives be reviewed again during 2018/19 
alongside the development of the new Council Plan to ensure that in 
future the equality objectives were fully aligned to the Council Plan and 
council planning cycle.

406. Allerdale Social Impact Investment Fund 

The subject of the decision

The Policy Manager (Economic Growth) submitted a report which sought 
members to agree the process for the allocation of funds from the Allerdale 

Page 42



Social Impact Investment Fund which included the creation of an Allerdale 
Loans Fund from April 2018 onwards.

Members welcomed the report which in their view demonstrated the Council’s 
commitment to supporting small businesses in the local area.  

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendations in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

To continue to administer the fund as was.
To administer the loan scheme internally.
To use an accredited provider to manage the loans fund on the council’s behalf.

The reason for the decision

In April 2014 The Board of Sellafield Ltd agreed to allocate up to £1,000,000 per 
annum of funding for use by Allerdale Borough Council and Copeland Borough 
Council to support projects and initiatives that delivered social conditions for 
growth through Britain’s Energy Coast. 
The allocation of monies, straight from Sellafield from April 2017, must be in line 
with the objectives of the Sellafield Socio Economic Strategy and Energy Act, in 
addition to the Council’s own Council Plan priorities.
Members were asked to agree the process by which the Council allocated 
money from the Social Impact Investment Fund for 2018/19 onwards.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. Members agreed to the allocation of funds from the £500,000 per annum 
Social Impact Investment Fund, which was provided by funding from 
Sellafield Ltd annually along the lines outlined below:

 A loans fund of £500,000 was proposed. Initially, this would be built up 
by contributions over 2 years of £250,000 - 2018/19 and 2019/20 - 
subject to funding provided annually by Sellafield. This would be topped 
up annually thereafter by up to £250,000, until external funding ceased, 
i.e. Sellafield Board decided not to award £500,000 each to the Council 
and Copeland Borough Council.

 £100,000 to support businesses up to three years of age with capital 
grants of up to £10,000 with decisions delegated to the Head of Strategy, 
Policy and Performance in consultation with the Leader and Portfolio 
Holder for Economic Growth, subject to funding provided annually by 
Sellafield.

 £150,000 to support the delivery of projects that support the delivery of 
the Council’s Business Growth Strategy with decisions delegated to the 
Corporate Director in consultation with the Leader and Portfolio Holder 
for Economic Growth subject to funding provided annually by Sellafield.

Page 43



2. Members agreed to enter into a Legal Agreement with Enterprise 
Answers to administer the Loans Fund on behalf of Allerdale Borough 
Council.

3. The finalisation of the Legal Agreement with Enterprise Answers be 
delegated to the Head of Governance and the Head of Strategy, Policy 
and Performance in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth.

407. Cumbria Healthy Weight Declaration 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Housing and Health submitted a report which sought members’ 
approval to commit to signing up to a Cumbria Healthy Weight Declaration.

The Healthy Weight Declaration was a statement of intent for a local authority to 
put obesity reduction and promotion of healthy options at the heart of its policies 
and activities.

Councillor C McCarron-Holmes moved the recommendations in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to sign up to the Cumbria Healthy Weight Declaration.

The reason for the decision

To demonstrate the council’s commitment to health, and to work with the other 
local authorities and council partners to improve healthy weight within local 
communities thereby improving lives.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The signing up to the Cumbria Healthy Weight Declaration be agreed
2. The Leader of the Council and Chief Executive sign on behalf of 

Allerdale Borough Council.

The meeting closed at 2.40 pm

Page 44



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 18 April 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson

An apology for absence was received from  Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Staff Present

B Carlin, I Frost, R Griffin, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, R Wilkinson and 
G Wilson

413. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

414. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

415. Questions 

None received.

416. Members' Announcements 

None received.

417. Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy 

The subject of the decision

The Environmental Health Officer and Private Sector Housing Manager 
submitted a report which sought member’s approval of the draft Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement Policy and the Civil Penalty Policy.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendations in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered

Options for the adoption of additional legislation were set out in the report.

The reason for the decision

Page 45



The Policy was to be revised due to the introduction of new powers through the 
Housing and Planning Act 2017.
A Civil Penalty Policy had been developed to set out how the council was 
planning to use Civil Penalties.

The decision

Resolved:

That: 

1. The Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy and Civil Penalty Policy 
be approved

2. The Head of Housing and Health be given delegated authority to 
authorise officers to exercise the enforcement powers reserved by the 
legislative changes in the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy

3. The Head of Housing and Health be given delegated authority to make 
minor amendments to the Housing Enforcement Policy, once the 
regulations relating to houses in multiple occupation had been enacted.

418. Response to BEIS consultations on a geological disposal facility 

The subject of the decision

The Policy Manager Nuclear submitted a report which sought member’s 
approval of the draft responses to the Government consultations relating to their 
proposed siting process for a Geological Disposal Facility.

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) had 
launched two consultations relating to their revised siting process for a 
Geological Disposal Facility.

Members thanked the officer for an excellent report which they felt captured 
their desired response and which reiterated their position from when the 
consultation was last on the agenda back in 2013.

Members reacted unfavourably over the Governments consultation process with 
Allerdale Borough Council. In that, it failed to acknowledge that West Cumbria 
was, and had been for the last 70 years, the host to Sellafield and therefore its 
situation was different to most. Allerdale Borough Council had also engaged in 
the process in 2013 therefore the authority was not coming in to it new nor was 
it declaring an interest.

The Executive believed the Government needed to converse and negotiate with 
Allerdale on a different basis and framework to those declaring an interest as 
newcomers.

It was agreed a strong cover letter be included with the Councils consultation 
responses to raise members concerns and due to timescales, delegated 

Page 46



authority be awarded to the Leader and the Deputy Leader of the Council to 
sign off the letter to ensure compliance with the consultation deadline.

Concerns were also raised around geological safety and process and it was 
requested the consultation response be strengthened around concerns in those 
areas. 

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations subject to the amendments. 
This was seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to respond to the consultation process. 

The reason for the decision

To approve responses to the Government consultations relating to their 
proposed siting process for a geological disposal facility.

The decision

Resolved:

That – 

1. The draft responses to the two Government consultations relating to their 
proposed siting process for a geological disposal facility be amended to 
reflect comments made by the Executive on strengthening the lines 
around geological safety and process and then submitted to the 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)

2. A cover letter be included with the Councils consultation responses to 
raise members concerns and due to timescales, delegated authority be 
awarded to the Leader and the Deputy Leader of the Council to sign off 
the letter to ensure compliance with the consultation deadline.

419. Extension of Memorandum of Agreement, Solway Coast AONB 
Partnership 

The subject of the decision

The Solway Coast AONB Manager submitted a report which sought member’s 
approval of an extension to the current Memorandum of Agreement (MoA), 
Solway Coast AONB Partnership to cover the years 2018/19 and 2019/20 to 
provide a framework for financial support and hosting of the AONB Partnership 
and staff team along with Cumbria County Council and Carlisle City Council. 

Councillor A Smith left the room at the start of the item.

Page 47



Councillor W Jefferson moved the recommendations in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed by the 6 members present.

Alternative options considered

Not to extend the Agreement or to produce a separate Agreement between 
Allerdale Borough Council and the AONB Partnership.

The reason for the decision

To extend the current Memorandum of Agreement (MoA), Solway Coast AONB 
Partnership to cover the years 2018/19 and 2019/20.

The decision

Resolved:

That: 

1. The Memorandum of Agreement be extended for a further two years to 
cover the financial years 2018-19 and 2019-20, along with Cumbria 
County Council and Carlisle City Council

2. The drafting of the extension of the shared agreement between the three 
local authority partners be delegated to the AONB Manager, in 
consultation with the Corporate Director and the Head of Governance.

The meeting closed at 10.50 am

Page 48



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 16 May 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Mark Fryer (Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

An apology for absence was received from  Councillor Alan Smith

Staff Present

B Carlin, I Frost, N Hardy, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, E Thompson 
and R Wilkinson

14. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

15. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

16. Questions 

None received.

17. Members' Announcements 

None received.

18. Maryport Delivery Plan 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Place Development submitted a report which sought members to 
consider and approve the Maryport Delivery Plan.

As part of the Allerdale Economic Growth Plan which set out a range of 
interventions to enhance the livability of Allerdale’s local centres, Maryport had 
been identified as a priority area for action. A delivery plan had therefore been 
developed to help guide future regeneration for Maryport, to enable the town to 
fulfil its role as a key residential, employment and visitor centre.

The Executive considered it an excellent Plan, one which was achievable, 
highlighted ideas and opportunities and the potential for the town to create its 
own identity, with the support of the Town and Borough Council. It recognised 
the importance of the involvement of the local community people and groups 

Page 49



but also the need for strong and continuous commitment and leadership from 
the Borough Council to ensure its successes.

Councillor C McCarron-Holmes moved the recommendations within the report; 
this was seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to accept the Delivery Plan.

The reason for the decision

To consider the proposed Maryport Delivery Plan for approval.

The decision

Resolved:

That - 

1. The Maryport Delivery Plan be approved and the Council commits to 
support its implementation

2. A stakeholder steering group be established that will involve key partners 
who will set overall direction, support communication and act as 
ambassadors for the programme. To support this an Officer Programme 
Board will ensure that the programme of work and individual projects are 
managed to deliver the agreed outputs and outcomes on time and 
budget

3. A Programme Manager be appointed to lead the implementation of the 
Delivery Plan.  

The meeting closed at 10.20 am

Page 50



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 13 June 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson

An apology for absence was received from  Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Staff Present

B Carlin, A FitzGerald, I Frost, N Hardy, C Holmes, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, 
A Seekings, E Thompson, R Wilkinson, G Wilson and P Wood

47. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

48. Declaration of Interests 

9. Tackling Inequalities Priorities Fund.
Councillor Mark Fryer; Other Registrable Interest; Due to him being a 
member of West Cumbria Credit Union and his private company being a 
Fareshare member/food Partner.

9. Tackling Inequalities Priorities Fund.
Councillor Michael Heaslip; Other Registrable Interest; Due to him being 
a Director of West Cumbria Credit Union.

49. Questions 

None received.

50. Members' Announcements 

None received.

51. Capital Outturn Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to provide 
members with information on the 2017/18 capital programme and sought their 
approval on the carry-forward budgeted amounts to 2018/19. 

Members noted the capital outturn position for 2017/18:

Page 51



 Revised capital budget of £5.935m
 Actual expenditure of £3.034m
 An underspend compared to the revised budget of £2.901m
 Budget carry forward requests of unspent budget of £2.787m
 A remaining underspend of £114k

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendations. This was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the carry-forward of resources.

The reason for the decision

To provide members with information regarding the 2017/18 capital programme 
and to approve the carry-forward of resources to 2018/19.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The draft capital outturn position be noted

2. The carry forward of £2,786,408 to 2018/19 be approved, to enable 
previously approved capital schemes to be completed

3. The carry forward of £102,262 Disabled Facility Grant to 2018/19 be 
approved and allocated to discretionary Disabled Facility Grant budget.

52. Revenue Outturn Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
members of the provisional revenue outturn for 2017/18 and made 
recommendations on budget carry forwards and transfers to and from reserves.

Members noted the revenue outturn for 2017/18:

Revenue budget expenditure:

 Revenue budget of £14.629m
 Actual net expenditure including planned contributions to reserve of 

£14.063m
 A net underspend of £566k 
 Requested contributions to earmarked reserves of £655k

Funding:

Page 52



 Income from Taxation & Government Grants exceeded budget by £289k
 Requested contribution to earmarked reserves of additional income 

received of £200k
 No change to the budgeted use of General Fund

Earmarked reserves:

 Expenditure from the earmarked reserves was overspent by £97k
 After reprofiling of expenditure between financial years, left a net 

underspend against budget of £42k
 A further £43k underspend had been identified following a review of 

earmarked reserves that were no longer required to meet future 
expenditure

 Resulted in £85k being released back to the general fund balance.
  

Members expressed their thanks to the Head of Financial Services and the 
Finance Team for all of their hard work on the budget.

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendations as set out in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the contributions to earmarked reserves.

The reason for the decision

To note the provisional revenue outturn for 2017/18 and to approve budget 
carry forwards and transfers to and from reserves.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The provisional revenue outturn position detailed in the report be noted

2. The impact of the revenue outturn position on the Authority’s general 
fund and earmarked (general fund) balances be noted

3. The contribution to earmarked reserves of £1,469,226: (comprising 
planned contributions (£254,194), additional contributions (£655,033), 
income from the business rates system, included as part of the revised 
budget (£360,000) and additional income from taxation and government 
grants (£200,000) be approved. 

53. Q4 Performance Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

Page 53



The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) submitted a 
report which sought to advise members on the Council’s performance at the 
end of Q4 2017/18, as measured by projects/activities and KPIs set out in the 
Corporate Business Plan 2017/18.

Members considered and noted the progress made against each of the key 
programmes, projects and measures set out in the Corporate Business Plan.

The Plan contained 71 projects/activities and 52 key performance indicators 
across 5 Council Plan priority themes. At the end of the quarter, 28 projects 
were marked as complete, 21 of which were completed in Q4.
Of the remaining, 30 projects were on target, 13 projects were amber and no 
projects were marked as red.

Councillor A Smith moved that the report be noted; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

None

The reason for the decision

To advise Members of progress against the Corporate Business Plan key 
programmes and projects.

The decision

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

54. Tackling Inequalities Priorities Fund 

The subject of the decision

The Corporate Director submitted a report which sought member’s approval of 
expenditure from the Priorities Fund to support projects which addressed the 
Tackling Inequality priority of the Council Plan and the Councils Tackling 
Poverty Strategy.

Councillor A Smith highlighted an error in the report in relation to 
recommendation 5 and the figure shown in paragraph 3.5.1 of the report. The 
recommendation should have read; 
‘The remaining £47,700 is committed to establish an approach to community 
development work in areas with identifiable priorities associated with issues of 
tackling poverty’.

The Executive all expressed their strong commitment to the tackling inequality 
priority and their commitment to their communities and were therefore very 
much in support of the proposals within the report.

Page 54



With regards to recommendation 5, the commitment to establishing an 
approach to community development, Councillor B Cannon enquired as to how 
it would be done.
Councillor A Smith agreed to provide a briefing for members when more firm 
plans had been confirmed.

Councillor A Smith moved the motion subject to the amendment to 
recommendation 5; this was seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The motion was 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to approve the expenditure.

The reason for the decision

To determine expenditure from the Priorities Fund to support projects which 
addressed the Tackling Inequality priority of the Council Plan and the Councils 
Tackling Poverty Strategy.

The decision

Resolved:

That the following be agreed:

1. Citizens Advice Allerdale receives £35,000 per year for three years 
(£105,000 total) to facilitate supporting Allerdale residents with Universal 
Credit and related issues; and £12,000 in 2018/9 to support North 
Allerdale Foodbank;

2. Fare Share be supported via a one-off £10,000 input to develop 
opportunities for local groups to access the food distribution scheme;

3. North Lakes Foodbank receives £500 per year for three years to support 
the production of recipe information leaflets for their clients;

4. Two small grants funds be established for the next three years with 
£17,500 available for work skills and training support, and £17,000 
available for small projects run by community groups which address the 
themes of the Tackling Poverty Strategy; and to supporting internships 
for young people with learning difficulties;

5. The remaining £47,700 be committed to establish an approach to 
community development work in areas with identifiable priorities 
associated with issues of tackling poverty;

6. The funds referred to in recommendations 4 and 5 be delegated to the 
Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance, to include overall financial 
management;

Page 55



7. That for each of the funds, a performance management framework be 
developed by the Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance and for this 
to be agreed with each funded partner;

8. That the support to Affinity Credit Union be re-profiled.

55. Investment in The Wave, Maryport 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Community Services submitted a report which sought members to 
make a commitment to invest £87,000 to develop a new fitness area within The 
Wave, Maryport and to reduce the subsidy by £275,000 over a six year contract 
period.

It was highlighted the contract to operate and manage The Wave was due to 
terminate on 31 March 2019, and therefore to realise the proposed benefits 
there would be a requirement to extend the contract. It was proposed to extend 
it in line with all other contracts the Council held with Greenwich Leisure Ltd 
(GLL) which would therefore be an extension to 31 March 2024. 

Councillor M Heaslip moved the recommendations; this was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to invest in to the venue and accept the ongoing consequences of not doing 
so.

The reason for the decision

To increase the use of The Wave, Maryport by introducing a fitness gym within 
the venue. And also to meet the savings identified in the self-sufficiency 
programme.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. £87,000 be approved from the Strategic Priorities revenue budget 
2018/19 towards a new fitness area within The Wave

2. The extension of The Wave contract be delegated to the Head of 
Community Services in conjunction with the Head of Governance.

Page 56



The Chairman will move:- 

Resolved -

“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.”

56. Future Options for Workington Town Centre 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Place Development submitted a report which sought members to 
note work being undertaken to explore future commercial opportunities for 
Workington Town Centre in accordance with the Capital Investment Strategy 
and the Councils priority of ‘Enhancing our Towns’ and to endorse the proposed 
course of action.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to endorse the proposed course of action.

The reason for the decision

To update members on the work that had been undertaken.

The decision

Resolved:

That the report be noted and the proposed course of action be endorsed.

The meeting closed at 11.40 am

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Allerdale Borough Council

Council – 25 July 2018 

Allerdale Borough Council – 
Annual Summary Report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

The Reason for the Decision This is the update report of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Summary of options considered Not applicable.

Recommendations That the report be noted.

Financial /  Resource Implications There are no direct implications.

Legal / Governance Implications There are no direct implications. 

Community Safety Implications There are no direct implications. 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Not required for this report.

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
contributes to all Council Plan priorities. 

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Not applicable

Lead Scrutiny Member Councillor Alan Pitcher and Councillor Janet 
Farebrother (Co-Chairs) 

Lead Officer Ian Hinde
Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships)
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 59

Agenda Item 11



Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers:

None

1.0 The Annual Summary Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Annual Summary report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 
year 2017-2018 is attached.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the report be noted.

Councillor Alan Pitcher and Councillor Janet Farebrother
Co-Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Page 60



Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Summary

2017 - 18

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit”
Page 61



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

Foreword
This year has been one of establishing the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in its 
new form following the Local Government Association peer review undertaken in 
early 2017.

The review produced the recommendation for a single committee supported by task 
and finish groups. This was adopted by the Council at its meeting on 10 May 2017, 
along with the proposal to have two co-chairs. 

The Committee members are highly experienced having all previously been 
members of one of the two prior scrutiny committees. 

The co-chairing arrangement has worked well in giving a support structure when 
timetables of life outside Council business necessitate absences, and support for 
each other perhaps because of rather than in spite of being from different political 
groups. 

Each co-chair ran meetings for half the year, and to maintain consistency agreed 
that the one not chairing the main Committee would chair the Performance Standing 
Group which has also worked well.

As co-chairs we believe the Committee has made good progress over the last twelve 
months, but as always there is still more to do!

We would urge Members to look at the work plan and consider what contribution 
each individual can make to further strengthen the work of the Committee and the 
task and finish groups in particular.

Councillor Janet Farebrother   Councillor Alan Pitcher   

Co-Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 62



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

Committee membership 2017-2018
The Committee consists of twelve members. During 2017-2018 the members were:

Councillor Joe Cowell

Councillor Janet Farebrother   

Councillor Bill Finlay

Councillor Malcolm Grainger   

Councillor Hilary Harrington

Councillor Joe Holliday

Councillor Billy Miskelly   

Councillor Jim Osborn

Councillor Alan Pitcher   

Councillor Bill Pegram

Councillor Celia Tibble

Councillor Martin Wood   

During the year, Cllr. Christine Smith substituted for Cllr. Martin Wood.

Progress towards the review recommendations
The Peer Review, commissioned by the Council and undertaken by the Local 
Government Association in early 2017, made seven recommendations, shown in the 
left column of the table below with the progress noted in the right column.

1. Continue to develop a more 
focused work plan more closely 
aligned to council priorities, key 
decisions and topics of public 
interest/importance.

This will help prioritise issues where 
scrutiny can ‘add value’ including more 
pre-decision scrutiny.

The initial work plan was developed alongside the 
review process through informal workshops. It is 
now reviewed at each committee meeting.

The review recommended the development of the 
task and finish groups and the major subjects to 
be scrutinised at full Committee meetings. 

Since May 2017 the Committee has received 
presentations regarding the Council's Housing 
Strategy, the skills agenda relating to the Council's 
Business Growth Strategy and the West Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership. 

2. Develop a single committee 
structure supported by task and 
finish groups aligned to council 
priorities.

This will help build capacity for more 
detailed pieces of work linked to 
council priorities outside of formal 
committee meetings. The task and 

This was effected at the Council meeting held 17 
May 2017 and task and finish groups have been 
established, as detailed in this report.

Page 63



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

finish groups should provide 
opportunities for any scrutiny member 
to chair and any member to join 
(regardless of political party).

3. Re-invigorate community 
engagement and communication in 
relation to the work of scrutiny.

Task and finish groups focused upon 
key priorities/topics should provide 
more space to do this, including 
opportunities to appoint co-optees to 
the task and finish groups.

The task and finish groups relate to major areas of 
work for the Council including the development of 
the tackling poverty strategy, the letting of the 
waste, recycling and street cleansing/grounds 
maintenance contracts, the ongoing performance 
measured on a quarterly basis and the annual 
budget setting process.

4. Develop a renewed focus on the 
leadership of scrutiny across the 
council.

This should include the role of all 
members including co-optees. It will 
send an important message to all 
stakeholders about the role and profile 
of overview and scrutiny.

All task and finish groups are open to all 
Councillors as stated in recommendation 2. Each 
report to establish a task and finish group is 
preceded by an invitation to all Councillors, issued 
by the scrutiny support officer, inviting expressions 
of interest to volunteer to join the groups. Chairing 
of each task and finish group is undertaken by a 
member of the main Committee to maintain 
continuity and connection with the Committee.

5. Develop stronger links between 
the Executive and overview and 
scrutiny - strengthening 
communication and ways of working 
will allow scrutiny to better inform and 
shape policy and decisions.

The co-chairing arrangement is working well, and 
during the year the Co-Chairs have met with the 
Leader to discuss progress and the work to be 
done.

There is further strengthening work needed, for 
instance around establishing portfolio holders’ 
attendance at task and finish groups, and giving a 
portfolio report to the main Committee. 

The Leader and Executive Members for Corporate 
Resources and Economic Growth have attended 
the Performance Group meetings; the Executive 
Member for Locality and Environmental Quality 
attends the Community Services Business Model 
task and finish group.

6. Develop a rolling programme of 
overview and scrutiny training for 
both councillors and officers.

The council should support the 
development of skills important for 
good scrutiny including a mandatory 

The Co-Chairs attended excellent training at the 
Institute of Local Government Studies, hosted by 
the University of Birmingham, and since have 
been able to share ideas of how scrutiny should 
operate with other committee members during an 
informal discussion session.

Page 64



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

intensive training programme for 
scrutiny members.

Other informal training sessions with committee 
members are planned. 

Further formal training needs will be considered in 
due course. 

7. Review decision making 
templates, forward plan template 
and project planning processes to 
incorporate prompts in relation to 
the scrutiny function – this should 
encourage all in the Council to consider 
the role scrutiny could play in both pre-
decision and post decision scrutiny.

This is being reviewed. Staff have in some 
instances brought draft policies to the Committee 
for consideration and this practice, which has 
proved to be beneficial, and should be more 
universally encouraged.

Training and development
In June 2017, the Co-Chairs attended training at the Institute of Local Government 
Studies, part of the University of Birmingham. Each of them found this very useful in 
deepening their understanding of the function and role of the scrutiny process, which 
they subsequently shared at an informal meeting with the other Committee 
members.

The Committee and non-Committee members of the task and finish groups, along 
with all other Council members, were offered training in November 2017 from the 
Centre for Public Scrutiny, considering the overall role of scrutiny and its role in 
budget scrutiny.

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee met nine times during 2017/18.  The 
Committee considered a wide variety of subjects over the course of those meetings, 
including a focus on specific elements of the Housing Strategy; consideration of the 
draft Housing Enforcement Policy, brought to the Committee at the request of 
officers as part of the Committee’s role in policy development; and the annual 
scrutiny of the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership. 

Call-in
There was one Call-in during the municipal year 2017/18. This related to an 
Executive decision in September 2017 to award £220,300 to West Cumbria Credit 

Page 65



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

Union over 4 years to support the Credit Union with activity to rebrand as Affinity, 
and establish town centre premises. In being referred back to Executive, the decision 
was re-taken to award the funds.

Task and Finish Group activity
The Committee have initiated a number of task and finish groups in 2017/18 to 
undertake more in depth review work.  The approach that the Committee has 
adopted is that, whilst there will always be some Committee members on a task and 
finish group, they have been eager to involve the wider membership and have 
encouraged all members to take part in task and finish groups according to their 
interest/knowledge.  The Committee are keen to encourage any members to take 
part in TFG work in the coming year.  

Tackling Poverty Task and Finish Group

The Task and Finish Group was established with the following terms of reference:

  consider and scrutinise the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action 
Plan;

  identify what is currently being done by the Council and partners to tackle 
poverty in the Borough;

  make recommendations for future actions by the Council and partners to 
tackle poverty in the Borough.

The Group consisted of: Cllr. Billy Miskelly (chair); Cllr. Bill Finlay; Cllr. Marion 
Fitzgerald; Cllr. Malcolm Grainger; Cllr. Hilary Harrington; Cllr. Philip Tibble.

The Group met six times between August and November, with each of the first three 
Objectives in the draft strategy given a full meeting devoted to its detail. 

Prior to the initial meeting, members of the group attended a Council organised 
Tackling Poverty seminar. This included presentations from organisations regarding 
their current work in the area including Barnardo's, Cumbria Youth Alliance, 
Groundwork North East and Cumbria, Inspira, North Lakes Foodbank, West Cumbria 
Credit Union, and West Cumbria Cultural Education Partnership. 

Members of the Group complemented their understanding of the issues associated 
through attending: 

 the West Cumbria Child Poverty Forum seminar 'Child Poverty: Making A 
Difference in Your Community'; 

Page 66



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

 a food poverty community forum focusing on the Fare Share scheme being 
introduced to the Allerdale and Copeland areas; 

 the Council's own 'Housing For The Future' seminar; 

 a visit to Keswick Community Housing Trust open to all interested Councillors; 

 plus the presentation at the Committee meeting on 3 November which 
focused on the current skills and training provision provided through Cumbria 
LEP.

The Group looked at the existing draft strategy and made some recommendations 
regarding layout which are incorporated in to the revised draft. The Group felt there 
ought to be greater focus on the three roles highlighted for the Council, namely

 our leadership role – we seek to work alongside and/or influence other 
organisations;

 our direct delivery – we do the work ourselves through existing staff;

 our facilitator role – we enable others to do work that supports our aims,

and were concerned to emphasise that these need to be implemented together.

The Group agreed that the Strategy should acknowledge that poverty issues affect 
residents across the whole borough and is not only found in the areas regularly 
highlighted in the relevant data. Members of the Group were especially supportive of 
the objective to better co-ordinate existing work and avoid duplication or competition, 
particularly when organisations are applying for funding.

The Task and Finish Group reported back to the Committee having made some 
recommendations for changes to the Strategy, their recommendations were then 
presented by the Committee to Executive on 21 February 2018 where the revised 
Tackling Poverty Strategy was adopted.

Community Services Business Model Task and Finish Group

The Task and Finish Group was established to oversee the process of letting three 
contracts for the delivery of services in waste collection, recycling and grounds 
maintenance with the following terms of reference:

 consider and scrutinise the processes involved in awarding the new contracts;

 identify what is currently being done by the Council to ensure the needs of all 
residents are considered in the new contract arrangements;

 identify what is currently being done by the Council to ensure the new 
contracts will deliver the expected level of service and deliver the anticipated 
savings;

Page 67



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

 make recommendations for improvements to the process.

The Group consists of: Cllr. Malcolm Grainger (chair); Cllr. Hilary Harrington; Cllr. 
Billy Miskelly; Cllr. Ron Munby; Cllr. Bill Pegram.

The Group has been meeting in conjunction with the timetable for the process of 
letting the contract. This work is ongoing and the group will complete its work in early 
summer.

Supported by staff, the group has looked at the detail of the documents which 
bidders are making their submissions against to understand the requirements of the 
three contracts. Several aspects have been debated in detail.

The group was offered the opportunity to visit the Hespin Wood site and received 
presentations from the operators and commissioners of the facilities, covering the 
different aspects of the recycling operations.

The group will continue to meet until the process is complete, anticipated to be early 
autumn 2018.

Budget Review Task and Finish Group
The Budget Review Task and Finish Group was established to consider the following 
terms of reference:

 to perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the proposed Allerdale 
Borough Council budget for the 2018-2019 financial year;

 to report risks or threats that, in the view of the Task and Finish Group, may 
hinder the Council in achieving its objectives in delivering the Council Plan to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration;

 to similarly report any suggestions for efficiencies or savings for consideration.

The Group consisted of: Cllr. Bill Finlay (chair); Cllr. Carole Armstrong; Cllr. Peter 
Bales; Cllr. Joe Cowell; Cllr. Janet Farebrother; Cllr. Marion Fitzgerald; Cllr. Philip 
Tibble.

In early November 2017 members of the Group attended a scrutiny training session 
which included a focus on budget scrutiny. At this session, the trainer offered an 
observation that, based on prior experience, the scope and remit agreed for the 
Group was unlikely to be achieved in the timescale and advised that the time 
available would be most productively used to build understanding of the processes 
involved in budget setting. This then became the focus of the Group’s work.

The group met 4 times between November 2017 and February 2018 and worked 
through the following themes over the meetings:

How is the budget developed?

Page 68



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

Is there a contingency plan for slippage? 

What is the policy on reserves?

What is the policy on capital assets?

What checks and balances are in place?

The group also considered the draft Budget Consultation document. 

The group suggested the Budget Consultation document, or a link to the electronic 
version, should be directly sent to all Councillors, encouraging them to promote the 
consultation to town and parish councils.

The group was informed the Cumbrian authorities bid to be part of the 100% 
business rates retention pilot was unsuccessful.

The group concluded that while the process was not as was originally imagined, the 
learning gained will be a useful foundation for future budget scrutiny. 

Performance Standing Group

The Performance Group was established with the following terms of reference:

 consider and scrutinise the quarterly corporate performance reports (Council 
Plan delivery Key Performance Indicators - KPIs);

 consider and scrutinise the quarterly finance reports;

 question any under-performance or significant variances and highlight any 
concerns;

 note all completed work and highlight / commend strong performance;

 make recommendations for any improvements to the process.

The Group consists of: Cllr. Alan Pitcher (co-chair); Cllr. Bill Finlay; Cllr. Janet 
Farebrother (co-chair); Cllr. Marion Fitzgerald; Cllr. Anthony Markley; Cllr. David 
Wilson.

The group has met 3 times to date (September and December 2017, March 2018) to 
receive the quarterly performance and financial reports to coincide with Executive’s 
consideration of these reports.

The group has now consolidated its role; however, at the end of the year a need 
emerged to improve how its work and findings are shared with the main Committee 
members while avoiding detailed reporting at the Committee meetings. 

Page 69



Overview and Scrutiny Annual Summary 2017/18

The coming year
The Committee agreed its work plan for the year ahead on 9 March 2018.  The 
following topics form the basis of work for the forthcoming year:

 delivery of ESF funded training support across the borough, linked to the 
Business Growth Strategy;

 engagement and training for Councillors, including preparation for the wider 
community role of being a Councillor, relationships with and engagement at 
town and parish council meetings, and engagement of Councillors in day-to-
day business which could include new technological approaches(tablets) (task 
and finish group);

 development of the Council Plan 2019–2023;

 Council budget setting process for 2019-2020 (task and finish group);

 effectiveness of consultation, with a particular focus on the recent local plan 
consultation (task and finish group);

 the leisure and arts strategy; and

 enforcement across the Council (proposed task and finish group).

The work plan is reviewed by the Committee at each of its meetings to ensure that it 
remains up to date and any changing circumstances or additional emerging topics 
are considered.  

Alongside its work plan the Committee will continue to focus on continuous 
improvement in line with the recommendations from the LGA Peer Review.

More information on the scrutiny function, including agendas, minutes, ongoing 
review work, and Councillor details can be found on the council’s website: 
www.allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 70

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/


Allerdale Borough Council

Council - 25 July 2018

Community Governance Review Petition

The Reason for the Decision A petition has been received requesting 
that Allerdale Borough Council carries 
out a Community Governance Review 
into the establishment of a separate 
parish council for the Moorclose ward 
area.

Summary of options considered To determine what action, if any, is to be 
taken in response to the petition.

Recommendations That Council considers each of the three 
options set out at paragraph 2.3 and 
determines which course of action it 
wishes to take.

If Council resolves to approve Option B 
then Terms of Reference for the review 
must be agreed before work can 
commence; draft Terms of Reference are 
set out at Appendix A. It is proposed that 
the review is undertaken by the existing 
Workington CGR Working Group with 
final recommendations being submitted 
to Council for approval. 

If Council resolves to approve Option C 
then the Terms of Reference for the 
Workington Community Governance 
Review, as set out at Appendix B to the 
report, must be amended to include the 
Moorclose Parish option.

Financial /  Resource Implications There will be some financial implications 
associated with the public engagement 
work involved in a Community 
Governance Review and with the cost of 
running a number of working group 
meetings.

Legal / Governance Implications Implications for electoral administration 
of the parish.

Community Safety Implications None

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

N/A

Wards Affected Workington Moorclose ward

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Joan Ellis

Lead Officer Lindsay Tomlinson
Electoral Services Manager

lindsay.tomlinson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Financial Y
Legal Y Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety N
Employment (internal) N Employment 

(external to the Council)
N

Background Papers

 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
 LGBCE Guidance on Community Governance Reviews

1.0 The Petition

1.1 On 16 May 2018 a petition was received requesting a Community 
Governance Review of the Moorclose ward of Workington. The petition was 
signed by 358 residents of the Moorclose ward.  

1.2 Section 80(3) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007 (The Act) provides that for such a petition to be valid, where the local 
government electorate figure is 2,500 or more it must be signed by 10% of 
those electors. The local government electorate of the Moorclose ward on the 
date the petition was submitted was 3,394 therefore 339 signatures were 
required. In addition the petition must clearly set out the area to be reviewed, 
the recommendations that the community governance review is to consider 
and the area of any new parish council proposed. 

Page 72



1.3 Checking of the petition against the electoral register has shown that 346 of 
the signatories were valid local government electors on the relevant date. The 
title and description of the petition clearly set out that the area to be reviewed 
is the Moorclose ward area, and that the CGR is requested to look at setting 
up a parish council for that area. Therefore the petition has been determined 
to be valid. 

2.0 The Options

2.1 Section 85 (4) of The Act states that where the principal council is already 
undertaking a community governance review of part of the council’s area and 
the petition relates to part of that area (and is not wholly outside the area 
under review) then it is for the Council to decide what action, if any, to take 
under Section 82 (power to undertake a review) or Section 81(4)(b) (power to 
modify terms of review) in response to the petition. 

2.2 In November 2017 Council agreed to undertake a Community Governance 
Review of the Workington Town Council area. This review has now completed 
the first stage of consultation on the boundaries and council size. Stage two is 
due to complete in August 2018. The area that the petition refers to is wholly 
within the area already under review. 

2.3 The Act therefore gives Council three options in this case:

Option A  Take no action in response to the petition

Option B  Undertake a separate Community Governance Review of the    
Moorclose ward area, specifically the question of establishing a 
separate parish council for the area

Option C  Modify the terms of reference of the current Community     
Governance Review of Workington to allow the Working Group 
to undertake a consultation on the proposal to establish a 
separate parish council for the area alongside the stage 2 
consultation 

3.0 Finance/Resource Implications

3.1 The duty to carry out a Community Governance Review and to bear the 
associated costs rests with Allerdale Borough Council as the principal 
authority. The costs will mainly arise from the public consultation events and 
from the running of a number of working group meetings. 

4.0 Legal Implications and Risks

4.1 The procedure for conducting a Community Governance Review is set out in 
legislation. Appropriate guidance and advice will be sought at all stages to 
ensure compliance with the statutory requirements. 

Page 73



5.0 Recommendations

5.1 That Council considers each of the three options set out at paragraph 2.3 and 
determines which course of action it wishes to take.

5.2 If Council resolves to approve Option B then Terms of Reference for the 
review must be agreed before work can commence; draft Terms of Reference 
are set out at Appendix A. It is proposed that the review is undertaken by the 
existing Workington CGR Working Group with final recommendations being 
submitted to Council for approval. 

5.3 If Council resolves to approve Option C then the Terms of Reference for the 
Workington Community Governance Review, as set out at Appendix B to the 
report, must be amended to include the Moorclose Parish option. 

Lindsay Tomlinson
Electoral Services Manager

Page 74



Allerdale Borough Council

Community Governance Review of Moorclose Ward

Terms of Reference

In undertaking the review, the Council will be guided by the relevant parts of the Local 
Government Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, the relevant parts of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Guidance on Community Governance Reviews issued by 
the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Electoral 
Commission. These terms of reference will set out the matters on which the review is 
to focus.

Why is the Council Undertaking the Review?

The Council has received a petition pursuant to Section 80(3) of the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 requesting that a Community Governance 
Review be carried out to consider the establishment of a separate parish council for 
the Moorclose ward area.

What will the Review consider?

The review will consider 
1. whether to establish a separate parish council for the Moorclose ward area as 

requested by petition submitted to council on 25 July 2018

All local government electors for the area under review and any other person or body 
who appears to have an interest in the review will be consulted on the proposals and 
their representations will be taken into account as part of the review.

The Council must have regard to the need to secure that the community governance 
arrangements for the area reflect the identities and interests of the community in the 
area and are effective and convenient.

Parish Governance within the Borough

The Council wants to ensure that there is clarity and transparency to the area that the 
Town Council represents and that the electoral arrangements are appropriate, 
equitable and readily understood by the electorate.

In its White Paper, Strong and Prosperous Communities, the Government emphasised 
that “Ultimately, the recommendations made in a community governance review ought 
to bring about improved community engagement, more cohesive communities, better 
local democracy and result in more effective and convenient delivery of local services.”

How the Council proposes to conduct consultations during the Review?

In arriving at its recommendations in a review, the Council will need to take account of 
the views of local people. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007 requires the Council to consult the local government electors for the area under 
review and any other person or body who appears to have an interest in the review 

Page 75



and to take the representations that are received into account by judging them against 
the criteria in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

The Council will consult in an appropriate manner within the review area ensuring that 
those affected are given the opportunity to respond. In accordance with the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, representations received in 
connection with the Review will be taken into account, and consultees will be informed 
of the outcome of the Review.

Any decisions made and the reasons for those decisions will be published following 
the review. The mechanism for this will be through the Council’s website, the Town 
Council’s website, issuing press releases, personal communications where 
appropriate and through posting notices within the area affected by the review.

The Community Governance Review Working Party
Terms of Reference

1. The Working Party will consider and determine the following stages of the 
Community Governance Review for Moorclose ward area:

(a) Agree the Review Terms of Reference for publication as the first phase of
consultation;

(c) Consult on proposals to establish a separate parish council for the Moorclose 
ward;

(d) Consider responses from the consultation;

(e) Consider and determine any other matters in connection with the Review with 
the exception of 2 below.

2. The Working Party will make final recommendations to Council on the content of 
any draft Community Reorganisation Order for Moorclose Ward area

3. The Working Party will comprise the fifteen members of the Allerdale Borough 
Council Workington Wards:

 Workington Harrington
 Workington Moorclose
 Workington Moss Bay
 Workington Stainburn
 Workington St John’s
 Workington St Michael’s

4. The quorum for the Working Party will be four members. 

 

Page 76



How to contact us or make a representation

Contact details at the Council for the duration of the review are as follows. Any
representations should also be sent to this address. Representations should include 
the full name and contact details for the person or organisation making the 
representation: -

Lindsay Tomlinson
Electoral Services Manager
lindsay.tomlinson@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 878657

Electoral Services
Allerdale House
Workington
CA14 3YJ

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Allerdale Borough Council

Community Governance Review of Workington

Terms of Reference

In undertaking the review, the Council will be guided by the relevant parts of the Local 
Government Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, the relevant parts of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Guidance on Community Governance Reviews issued by 
the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Electoral 
Commission. These terms of reference will set out the matters on which the review is 
to focus.

Why is the Council Undertaking the Review?

The Council has received a formal request from Workington Town Council to conduct 
a Community Governance Review of the Workington Parish area.

What will the Review consider?

The review will consider 
1. the electoral ward boundaries of Workington Town Council
2. the electoral arrangements of Workington Town Council in respect of the 

number of councillors representing each ward
3. whether to recommend any amendments to the Workington parish boundary 
4. whether to establish a separate parish council for the Moorclose ward as 

requested by petition submitted to council on 25 July 2018

All local government electors for the area under review and any other person or body 
who appears to have an interest in the review will be consulted on the proposals and 
their representations will be taken into account as part of the review.

The Council must have regard to the need to secure that the community governance 
arrangements for the area reflect the identities and interests of the community in the 
area and are effective and convenient.

Parish Governance within the Borough

The Council wants to ensure that there is clarity and transparency to the area that the 
Town Council represents and that the electoral arrangements are appropriate, 
equitable and readily understood by the electorate.

In its White Paper, Strong and Prosperous Communities, the Government emphasised 
that “Ultimately, the recommendations made in a community governance review ought 
to bring about improved community engagement, more cohesive communities, better 
local democracy and result in more effective and convenient delivery of local services.”

How the Council proposes to conduct consultations during the Review?

In arriving at its recommendations in a review, the Council will need to take account of 
the views of local people. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 

Page 79



2007 requires the Council to consult the local government electors for the area under 
review and any other person or body who appears to have an interest in the review 
and to take the representations that are received into account by judging them against 
the criteria in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

The Council will consult in an appropriate manner within the review area ensuring that 
those affected are given the opportunity to respond. In accordance with the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, representations received in 
connection with the Review will be taken into account, and consultees will be informed 
of the outcome of the Review.

Any decisions made and the reasons for those decisions will be published following 
the review. The mechanism for this will be through the Council’s website, the Town 
Council’s website, issuing press releases, personal communications where 
appropriate and through posting notices within the area affected by the review.

The Community Governance Review Working Party
Terms of Reference

1. The Working Party will consider and determine the following stages of the 
Community Governance Review for Workington Parish area:

(a) Agree the Review Terms of Reference for publication as the first phase of
consultation;

(b) Consider responses from the first phase of consultation;

(c) Consult on proposals to amend ward boundaries and electoral arrangements, 
proposals to amend the parish boundary and proposals to establish a separate 
parish council for the Moorclose ward as the second phase of consultation;

(d) Consider responses from the second phase of consultation;

(e) Consider and determine any other matters in connection with the Review with 
the exception of 2 below.

2. The Working Party will make final recommendations to Council on the content of 
the draft Community Reorganisation Order for Workington Parish area

3. The Working Party will comprise the fifteen members of the Allerdale Borough 
Council Workington Wards:

 Workington Harrington
 Workington Moorclose
 Workington Moss Bay
 Workington Stainburn
 Workington St John’s
 Workington St Michael’s

Page 80



4. The quorum for the Working Party will be four members. 

 

How to contact us or make a representation

Contact details at the Council for the duration of the review are as follows. Any
representations should also be sent to this address. Representations should include 
the full name and contact details for the person or organisation making the 
representation: -

Lindsay Tomlinson
Electoral Services Manager
lindsay.tomlinson@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 878657

Electoral Services
Allerdale House
Workington
CA14 3YJ

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Announcements from the Mayor, Leader or Head of Paid Service
	9 Portfolio Holder Reports
	10 Executive Minutes
	Minutes , 21/03/2018 Executive
	Minutes , 18/04/2018 Executive
	Minutes , 16/05/2018 Executive
	Minutes , 13/06/2018 Executive

	11 Annual Summary from Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Annual Summary from Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	12 Community Governance Review Petition
	Appendix A for Community Governance Review Petition
	Appendix B for Community Governance Review Petition


